14. SP-Exceptions 10a04_20130263044

05/14/2013 TUE 12:58 FAX 7135246371 PLUMMER & FARMER

21001/018

20130263044 05/30/2013 RP1 \$88.00

By Laws

N

N

BYLAWS OF THE ASBURY PARK CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 1.1 <u>Defined Terms</u>. Capitalized terms used in these Bylaws without definition shall have the meanings specified for such terms in the Texas Condominium Act, §82.001 et seq., and in the Declaration of Condominium and of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Asbury Park Condominium, recorded on June 4, 2008, at Instrument No. 20080287670 in the Official Records of Harris County, Texas Recorder, as amended from time to time. Whenever the context so requires, the use of the singular shall include and be construed as including the plural and the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter.
- 1.2 <u>Principal Office</u>. The principal office of the Association shall be located at the place designated in the Articles or such ofher place as may be designated from time to time pursuant to Texas law. Meetings of Members and the Board of Directors may be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other place as may be designated by the Board of Directors within the State of Texas.
- 1.3 <u>Conflicting Provisions</u>. In the case of any conflict between the Articles and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.
- 1.4 <u>Corporate Seat</u>. The Association may, but is not obligated to, have a seal in a form approved by the Board of Directors.
- 1.5 <u>Designation of Fiscal Year</u>. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the 1st day of January and end on the 31st day of December of every year, except that the first fiscal year shall begin on the date of incorporation.
- 1.6 <u>Books and Records</u>. The Condominium Documents and all other books, records, financial statements, and papers of the Association shall be available for inspection by any Member or First Mortgages during reasonable business hours at the principal office of the Association where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost. The Association may withhold from inspection those books, records and papers designated in Section 82.114(b) of the Texas Condominium Act.
- Amendment. Except as otherwise provided herein, these Bylaws may only be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Members, by a vote of Members holding more than fifty percent (50%) of the total allocated votes of the Membership entitled to be cast by the Members present in person, by proxy, or by absentee ballot as permitted by law, provided further that, during the Period of Declarant Control: (i) no amendment to these Bylaws shall be adopted without the express written consent of Declarant; (ii) any amendment of these Bylaws must be approved by the VA or FHA prior to the amendments taking effect, if said agencies have

H-Bylaws - Asbury Condominium Association (726329_1). DOC

HP 887-27-2482

approved the development plan of the Condominium; and (iii) Declarant, without the consent of any Unit Owner or First Mortgagee, may amend these Bylaws to comply with the Condominium Act or applicable law, correct any error or inconsistency, or to comply with the requirements or guidelines of any governmental or quasi-governmental entity or federal corporation guaranteeing or insuring mortgage loans in the Condominium. Section 3.1 of these Bylaws may be amended from time to time unilaterally by vote of the Board of Directors without the consent of the Members to change the number of Directors serving on the Board after the Period of Declarant Control expires or terminates to either three (3), five (5), or seven (7) directors from the number of director positions then established for the Board.

- Indemnification. To the extent it has the power to do so under Chapter 22 of the Texas Business Organizations Code, as it may be amended from time to time, the Association shall indemnify any Person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, in an action by or in the right of the Association or otherwise, by reason of the fact that he is or was a Member, director, officer, employee or agent of the Association or is or was scrving at the request of the Association as a member, director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. against expenses, including attorneys' fees, and against judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted, or failed to act, in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Association and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful. Indemnification of any such Person shall be made in accordance with the procedures set forth in Chapter 22 of the Texas Business Organizations Code. Liability of the Directors shall also be limited as provided in the Articles.
- Notices. All notices, damands, statements or other communications required to be given or served under these Bylaws shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given and served if delivered personally or sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, or, in the case of a notice pursuant to Section 2.11, Section 5.2, or Section 5.4 of these Bylaws, registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (i) if to a Unit Owner, at the address which the Unit Owner shall designate in writing and file with the Secretary or, if no such address is designated, at the address of the Unit of such Unit Owner, (ii) if to the Association, the Board of Directors or the Managing Agent, to such address as is set forth in any Recorded notice pursuant to Sections 82.113(d) and 82.116 of the Texas Condominium Act, and if such address is no longer valid, then to the last known business address of such Person on file with the Texas Secretary of State and, if a different address, also to the address of the statutory agent of such Person, and (iii) if to Declarant, at the address designated for Declarant in the records of the Texas Secretary of State. A notice given by mail, whether regular, certified or registered, shall be deemed to have been received by the person to whom the notice was addressed on the earlier of the date the notice is actually received or three (3) days after the notice is mailed. If a Unit is owned by more than one person, notice to one of the Unit Owners shall constitute notice to all Unit Owners of the same Unit. Addresses for notice may be changed from time to time by the giving of notice in the manner provided herein for the giving of notices.

ARTICLE IL MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

- 2.1 <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The first annual meeting of the Members shall be held within one (1) year of the date on which the Association is incorporated, and an annual meeting of the Members shall be held during each calendar year thereafter. The date, time and place of each annual meeting of the Members shall be determined by the Board of Directors, but shall always be held within the State of Texas.
- 2.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called at any time by the President or a majority of the Board of Directors or by Unit Owners having at least twenty percent (20%) of the total allocated votes in the Association. All special meetings of the Association Membership shall be held within the State of Texas. Special meetings called to remove directors shall be subject to the further provisions and requirements of Section 82.108 of the Texas Condominium Act.
- 2.3 Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting by mailing a copy of each notice, postage prepaid, no fewer than thirty (30) nor more than fifty (50) days before such meeting to each Member entitled to vote at the meeting addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the items on the agenda, including the general nature of any proposed amendment to the Declaration or the Bylaws, any budget changes or change in Assessments requiring the approval of Members, and any proposal to remove a director or officer.
- Quorum and Adjournment. Except as otherwise provided in the Articles, the Declaration or these Bylaws, including, without limitation, Section 7.4 of the Declaration, the presence in person, by proxy or by absentee ballot (as permitted by applicable law) of Members entitled to cast sixty percent (60%) of the total authorized votes in the Association shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Members. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting, the Members entitled to vote thereat shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. Except as provided in Section 7.4 of the Declaration, any adjournment for lack of a quorum shall be to a date not more than fifty (50) days from the original meeting date. Meetings may also be adjourned to another place and time for reasons other than lack of quorum if the place and time are announced at the meeting at which adjournment is taken and the reconvened meeting is held within fifty (50) days of the adjourned meeting.
- 2.5 <u>Multiple Owners</u>. If more than one Person owns a Unit and only one of those multiple Unit Owners of a Unit is present at a meeting of the Association, he is entitled to cast the vote allocated to that Unit on behalf of the other Persons who co-own the Unit. If more than one of the multiple Unit Owners are present, the vote allocated to that Unit may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the multiple Unit Owners, unless the Declaration otherwise provides. There is decemed to be agreement of a majority in interest of the co-Owners if any one of the attending co-Owners of the Unit casts the vote allocated to that Unit

without any of the co-Owners present promptly making a protest to the person presiding over that annual or special meeting of the Members.

2.6 Proxies/Absentee Ballots.

- (A) During the Period of Declarant Control, a vote allocated to a Unit may be cast pursuant to a proxy duly executed by a Unit Owner. If a Unit is owned by more than one Person, each co-Owner of the Unit may vote or register protest to the easting of votes by another Unit Owner of the Unit through a duly executed proxy. A Unit Owner may not revoke a proxy except by actual notice of revocation to the person presiding over a meeting of the Association. A proxy is void if it is not dated or if it purports to be revocable without notice. The proxy is revoked on presentation of a later dated proxy executed by the same Unit Owner. A proxy terminates one year after its date, unless it specifies a shorter term or unless it states that it is coupled with an interest and is irrevocable. All proxies, including irrevocable proxies coupled with an interest, shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the Member of his Unit or upon receipt of actual notice by the Secretary of the Board of the death or judicially declared incompetence of such Member.
- (B) Votes allocated to a Unit may be cast pursuant to a proxy in accordance with Section 82.110 of the Texas Condominium Act.
- 2.7 Record Date. For any meeting of the Members, the Board of Directors may fix in advance a date, not more than sixty (60) days nor less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting, as a record date for the determination of the Members of record entitled to notice of, and to vote at, such meeting. The Members entitled to vote at any meeting of the Members will be determined as of the applicable record date if one has been fixed as aforesaid, otherwise as of the time the meeting is convened.
- 2.8 <u>No Cumulative Voting</u>. There shall be no cumulative voting permitted in the affairs of the Association, including the election of Directors.
- 2.9 Organization and Conduct of Meetings. All meetings of Members will be called to order and thereafter chaired by the President of the Association. If the President is unavailable, such other officer of the Association or such other Member as may be appointed by the Board of Directors may call the meeting to order and chair the meeting. The Board may also delegate the role of chairing the meeting to the Managing Agent (as defined in Section 3.11(B) below). The Association's Secretary will act as secretary of each membership meeting. In his absence, the chairman of the meeting may appoint any person (whether a Member or not) to act as secretary thereat. After calling a meeting to order, the chairman thereof may require the registration of all Members intending to vote in person and the filing of all proxies (if proxy voting is then allowed by applicable law) with the election inspector or inspectors, if one or more has/have been appointed (or, if not, with the secretary of the meeting). After the announced time for such filing of proxies has ended, no further proxies or changes, substitutions or revocations of proxies will be accepted. Absent a showing of bad faith on his part, the chairman of the meeting will, among other things, have absolute authority to: (i) fix the period of time allowed for the registration of Members, the filing of proxies, and the delivery of absentee ballots, (ii) determine the order of

the business to be conducted at such meeting, and (iii) establish reasonable rules for expediting the business of the meeting (including any informal or question-and-answer portion thereof).

- 2.10 Action Without a Meeting by Written Consent. Pursuant to Section 22.220 of the Texas Business Organizations Code, any action that, under the provisions of the Condominium Documents and the Texas Condominium Act, may be taken at a meeting of the Members may, in lieu thereof, be taken without a meeting if authorized by a writing by the Members holding a majority of the votes in the Association, or if a higher percentage of votes is required by a specific provision of the Condominium Documents to take such action, then if authorized by a writing signed and dated by Members holding the specified percentage of votes in the Association. Such written consent shall be filed with the Secretary of the Association for inclusion in the corporate records as further provided in Section 82.114 of the Texas Condominium Act.
- 2.11 Suspension of Voting Rights. In the event any Unit Owner is in arrears in the payment of any Assessment, Collection Costs, or other fees or charges that are either secured by an Assessment Lien or by a civil judgment Recorded against a Unit Owner's Unit, for any period commencing fifteen (15) days after the due date in the case of amounts secured by the Assessment Lien or, for any period commencing fifteen (15) days after the Recording of any civil judgment in the case of Association charges that are not so secured, the Unit Owner's right to vote as a Member of the Association shall be automatically suspended. The Unit Owner's right to vote shall remain suspended until all payments secured by the Assessment Lien or any Recorded civil judgment are paid and/or brought current. In addition, a Unit Owner's right to vote shall be suspended for any continuing infraction of the Condominium Documents by the Unit Owner, his Lessees or their respective Invitees, that is not cured within thirty (30) days after notice thereof from the Association and shall remain suspended until any such infraction or violation of the Condominium Document ceases as reasonably determined by the Board. The Board may also impose a suspension of a Unit Owner's right to vote for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days by giving written notice of such suspension to any such Unit Owner who has committed, or whose Lessees or their respective invitees have committed, repeated or multiple single infractions (three or more instances) of any provisions of the Condominium Documents in any six (6) month period by giving written notice to such Unit Owner of the suspension (regardless of whether such infractions have been subsequently cured or ceased). In the case of a summary suspension of voting rights pursuant to this Section 2.11 for non-monetary violations of the Condominium Documents, the Board shall provide the date of the next scheduled Board meeting in the suspension notice. The affected Unit Owner may request a hearing before the Board before such suspension becomes effective if the Unit Owner serves a written request for a hearing on the Board within ten (10) days after the Board's service of the suspension notice on the Unit Owner in the manner provided in Section 1.9 above. Upon the Board's receipt of a request of a hearing, the matter shall be heard at the next scheduled Board meeting. To the extent applicable, all notices given by the Association under this Section 2.11 shall include the information required to be given under Section 82.102 of the Texas Condominium Act.
- 2.12 <u>Membership Mandatory</u>. The Membership of the Association shall consist of all record Owners of Units. Membership in the Association shall be mandatory and such Membership and voting rights are appurtenant to, and may not be separated from, ownership of

the Unit. No Owner during his ownership of a Unit shall have the right to relinquish or terminate his Membership in the Association.

ARTICLE III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1 Number/Composition/Qualifications. During the Period of Declarant Control:

The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a board comprised of three (3) directors. Declarant shall have the sole right to appoint and remove the members of the Board of Directors. Declarant-appointed Directors need not be Unit Owners. Declarant may voluntarily surreader its right to appoint and remove the members of the Board of Directors before termination of the Period of Declarant Control, and, in that event, the Declarant may require, for the duration of the Period of Declarant Control, that specified actions of the Association or the Board of Directors, as described in a Recorded instrument executed by Declarant, be approved by Declarant before they become effective.

After the Period of Declarant Control expires or terminates:

The Board shall remain comprised of three (3) directors. However, the number of director positions on the Board may be changed from time to time by an amendment to these Bylaws unilaterally adopted by the Board of Directors as provided in Section 1.7 above, with such amendment to be effective at the next meeting of the Association membership at which an election of directors is to be held. The number of directors may never be less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) and must always be an odd number. All directors shall be elected by the Unit Owners. Each director so elected by the Membership must be a Unit Owner or an officer, director, member, manager, partner, trustee or other principal of any Unit Owner that is a legal cutity or is otherwise not a natural person. No director serving on the Board at any time shall be related by blood, adoption, or marriage to, or share ownership of or any interest in a Unit with, any other director serving on the Board at that same time and in that event, the most recently elected director in such a relationship shall be deemed disqualified from serving on the Board. No member of the Association whose right to vote has been suspended pursuant to Section 2.11 above may stand for election to the Board by the Membership and such person shall automatically be deemed disqualified from seeking election to the Board.

3.2 Term of Office. All directors elected by the Unit Owners at a mesting of the Association Membership after the Period of Declarant Control expires or is earlier terminated shall serve staggered terms as follows: If a three person Board: The first director shall serve a three-year term, the next director elected shall serve a two-year term, and the remaining director shall serve a one-year term. If a five person Board: The first two directors shall serve a three-year term, the next two directors shall serve a two-year term, and the remaining director shall serve a one-year term. If a seven person Board: The first three directors shall serve a three-year term, the next two directors shall serve a two-year term, and the two remaining directors shall serve a one-year term. Thereafter, all directors shall be elected to three (3) year terms. All elections of directors shall be for such terms as will preserve the staggering of terms as provided in this Section 3.2. To determine which director shall serve terms of three years, two years or one year, respectively, the director(s) obtaining the most votes at the election at which they were elected shall serve the longest terms until all such terms are filled.

H-Bylaws - Asbury Condominium Association (726329_1), DOC

- 3.3 Removal. Except with respect to the members of the Board of Directors appointed by the Declarant, any one or more of the members of the Board of Directors may be removed from the Board of Directors, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Members entitled to vote and voting on the matter in person, by proxy (if allowed by applicable law), or at any special meeting of the Members of which notice has been properly given and a successor shall then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thereby created. Any petition to call a special meeting of the Members for purposes of removing a designated member of the Board of Directors may not be submitted more than once during the term of office for that particular Board member.
- 2.4 Compensation/Conflicts of Interest. No director shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association which is within his duties as a director. However, any director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties. A director may receive compensation for services rendered to the Association which are outside his duties as a director if the payment of such compensation is approved by all of the other directors. Any director with a "conflict of interest" as determined by the most strict interpretation of the director "conflict of interest" provisions of Chapter 22 of the Texas Business Organizations Code and the Texas Condominium Act (Section 82.103), as amended from time to time, may not vote on any proposal to provide director compensation to himself or any other director and shall recuse himself from participating in any discussions regarding a "conflicting interest" transaction.
- 3.5 Action Taken Without A Meeting. The directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written consent of all the directors. Any such written consent shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors.
- 3.6 <u>Vacancies</u>. Except with respect to members appointed by the Declarant and vacancies caused by the removal of a member of the Board of Directors by a vote of the Unit Owners as set forth in Section 3.3 of these Bylaws, all vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining directors though less than a quorum or by a sole remaining director. Any person so elected shall serve the unexpired portion of the prior director's team. Any newly created directorship shall be deemed a vacancy. Any person elected to fill such a vacancy shall serve until the next annual meeting of the Members.
- 3.7 <u>Regular Mestings.</u> Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place within the State of Texas as shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. All regular meetings of the Board shall be held in compliance with the provisions of Section 82.108 of the Condominium Act that allow for any Member or his designated representative to attend such Board meeting before any deliberative action is taken on a matter.
- 3.8 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on three (3) business days' notice to each director, given in writing, by hand delivery, mail or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) directors. Special meetings of

the Board shall be held within the State of Texas. Members and their designated representatives may attend and speak at special Board meetings in the same manner as provided in Section 3.7 above.

- 3.9 <u>Outpum/Proxy Voting.</u> A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Except as provided in the Condominium Act, every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a duly-held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board of Directors. A director may vote in person or by proxy in the manner provided in Chapter 22 of the Texas Business Organizations Code.
- 3.10 Waiver of Notice/Attendance by Members/Notice to Members. Before any meeting of the Board, any director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice to that director. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place of the meeting unless such attendance is for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Such meetings shall be held at least once during each fiscal year and are open to all Members of the Association as provided in Section 3.7 and Section 3.8 above, provided, however, that a portion of any meeting dealing with certain matters specified in Section \$2.108 of the Texas Condominium Act concerning litigation and other confidential matters of the Association may be closed to the Members. After the Period of Declarant Control expires or terminates, notice of the time and place of Board meetings may be given to Members by newsletter, conspicuous posting on or near the Common Element mail boxes, or by any other reasonable means as determined by the Board. During the Period of Declarant Control, no notice of Board meetings need be given to Unit Owners; provided, however, that information regarding the time and place of the next scheduled Board meeting shall be provided to any Member who requests such information in good faith.

3.11 Powers and Duties.

- (A) The Board of Directors shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts and things as are not by the Condominium Act or the Condominium Documents required to be exercised or done by the Members. In addition to the duties imposed by these Bylaws or by any resolution of the Members that may hereafter be adopted, the Board of Directors shall have the following powers and duties:
- (i) Open bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designate the signatories thereon, including those bank accounts specifically required in the Declaration to be maintained by the Board;
- (ii) Make, or contract for the making, of repairs, additions to, improvements to or alterations of the Condominium and repairs to the Common Elements, in accordance with the Condominium Documents, after damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, or as a result of condemnation or eminent domain proceedings;
- (iii) In the exercise of its discretion, enforce by legal means the provisions of the Condominium Documents;

- (iv) Designate, hire and dismiss the personnel necessary for the maintenance, operation, repair, and replacement of the Common Elements and provide services for the Condominium, and, where appropriate, provide for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies and material to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties:
- (v) Provide for the operation, care, upkeep and maintenance of all of the Common Elements and services of the Condominium (which may be provided by affiliates of Declarant, subject to the restrictions contained in the Condominium Documents) and comply with the provisions of the Texas Health & Safety Code and all Texas Board of Health pool safety and public health rules;
- (vi) Borrow money on behalf of the Association when required in connection with any one instance relating to the operation, unkeep and maintenance of the Common Elements; provided, however, the consent of Members having at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total allocated votes of each class of Membership in the Association shall be obtained in writing or at a meeting called and held for such purpose in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws in order for the Association to borrow in excess of \$150,000;
- (vii) Prepare and adopt an annual budget for the Association prior to the commencement of each fiscal year and obtain an annual financial audit, review or compilation of the Association's financial records as determined in the best judgment of the Board to be appropriate for an Association of this size and financial condition; with such audit, review or compilation to be performed by a qualified Person such as a licensed and insured independent accountant pursuant to Section 82.114(c) of the Condominium Act;
- (viii) Adopt and publish Rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Elements and facilities and the personal conduct of the Members and their Lessees and their respective Invitees thereon and establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (ix) In accordance with these Bylaws, suspend a Member's voting rights and rights to use the recreational Common Element amenities;
- (x) Exercise for the Association all powers, duties and anthority vested in or delegated to the Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of the Condominium Documents;
- (xi) Except for members of the Board of Directors appointed by the Declarant, declare the office of a member of the Board to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors;
- (xii) Except for members of the Board of Directors appointed by the Declarant, declare the office of a member of the Board to be vacant in the event such member's right to vote as a Member of the Association has been suspended pursuant to Section 2.11 above for a period not less than sixty (60) consecutive days, or, regardless of whether such member's right to vote has been suspended, in the event such member is delinquent in the payment of any Common Expense Assessment or Special Assessment for a period of not less than sixty (60) consecutive days;

H-Bylaws - Asbury Condominium Association(726329_1),DOC

- (xiii) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the Members at the annual meeting of the Members, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by any Member entitled to vote;
- (xiv) Supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association and see that their duties are properly performed;
- (xv) Levy Assessments, Collection Costs and other fees and charges of the Association in accordance with the Declaration and these Bylaws and take all necessary action to collect the same as permitted under Texas law;
- (xvi) To the extent required by the Declaration and/or by Texas law, issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue upon demand to any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any Assessment has been paid and any information required pursuant to Section 82.197 of the Texas Condominium Act;
- (xvii) Procure and maintain adequate property, liability and other insurance as required or permitted by the Declaration;
- (xviii) Cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as it may deem appropriate;
- (xix) Cause a current and updated Association Contact Notice to be Recorded for the Association pursuant to Section 82.116 of the Texas Condominium Act unless that duty has been delegated to a Managing Agent pursuant to Section 3.1I(B) below;
- (xx) Prepare and file annual tax returns with the federal government and the State of Texas and to make such elections as may be necessary to reduce or eliminate the tax liability of the Association, including an election to be taxed under Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code or any successor statute conferring income tax benefits on homeowners associations; and
- (xxi) Institute, defend, and intervene in any litigation or administrative proceedings in its own name or on behalf of the Unit Owners, subject to the provisions and restrictions of Article 10 and Section 11.19 of the Declaration.
- (B) The Board of Directors may employ for the Condominium a "Managing Agent" at a compensation established by the Board of Directors. The Managing Agent shall perform such duties and services as the Board of Directors shall authorize, including, but not limited to, all of the duties listed in the Condominium Act and the Condominium Documents, except for such duties and services that under the Condominium Act or the Condominium Documents may not be delegated to the Managing Agent. The Managing Agent shall cause the Association to be in compliance with the Recorded Association Contact Notice requirements of Section 82.116 of the Texas Condominium Act. The Board of Directors may delegate to the Managing Agent all of the powers granted to the Board of Directors or the officers of the Association by the Condominium Act and the Condominium Documents other than the following powers:
- (i) To adopt the annual budget, any amendment thereto, or to assess any Common Expenses:

H-Bylaws - Asbury Condominium Association(726329_1).DOC

- (ii) To adopt, repeal or amend Rules;
- (iii) To designate signatories on Association bank accounts:
- (iv) To borrow money on behalf of the Association;
- (v) To acquire and mortgage Units or other real property; or
- (vi) To allocate Limited Common Elements.
- (C) Any contract with the Managing Agent must provide that it may be terminated with or without cause and without payment of any penalty or termination fee on not more than ninety (90) days' written notice. The term of any such contract may not exceed three (3) years. Any contract or lease purporting to bind the Association to a contract or lease with Declarant and/or affiliates shall be terminable by the Association at will after the Period of Declarant Control expires or is earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of Section 82.105 of the Texas Condominium Act.

ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

- 4.1 Enumeration of Officers. The principal officers of the Association shall be the president, vice-president, the secretary, and the treasurer. The Board of Directors may create such other offices as the affairs of the Association may require. During the Period of Declarant Control, all officers of the Association shall be appointed and may be removed at will by the Declarant. After the termination of the Period of Declarant Control, all officers shall be elected by the Board of Directors. The President must be a member of the Board of Directors. Any other officers may, but need not, be members of the Board of Directors.
- 4.2 <u>Election of Officers</u>. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the Members.
- 4.3 Term. After the termination of the Period of Declarant Control expires or terminates, the officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and each shall hold office for one (1) year, unless he shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve.
- 4.4 Resignation and Removal. Except for officers appointed by the Declarant, any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board of Directors. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- . 4.5 <u>Vacancies</u>. Except for officers appointed by the Declarant, a vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board of Directors. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

- 4.6 <u>Multiple Offices</u>. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person except that the offices of President and Secretary shall be held by different persons after the Period of Declarant Control expires or is earlier terminated.
 - 4.7 Powers and Duties. The powers and duties of the officers shall be as follows:
- (A) <u>President.</u> The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association; shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors or the Members; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect; sign checks and promissory notes of the Association jointly with the Treasurer; cause the Treasurer to deposit monies in bank accounts of the Association; and shall generally manage the business of the Association. The duties of the President specified herein may, to the extent provided in Section 3.11(B) of these Bylaws and/or applicable law, be delegated to a Managing Agent.
- (B) <u>Vice-President</u>. The Vice-President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of his absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required of him by the Board of Directors.
- (C) <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board of Directors and of the members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Members; keep appropriate current records showing the Members of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board of Directors.
- (D) Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign checks and promissory notes of the Association jointly with the President; shall keep proper books of account; shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the Members at the regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the Members; and, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer. The duties of the Treasurer specified herein may, to the extent provided in Section 3.11(B) of these Bylaws and/or applicable law, be delegated to a Managing Agent.
- 4.8 <u>Compensation</u>. No officer shall receive compensation for any service he may render to the Association which is within his duties as an officer. However, any officer may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of his duties. An officer may receive compensation for services rendered to the Association which are outside his duties as an officer if the payment of such compensation is approved by a unanimous vote of the Board. Any director with a "conflict of interest" as determined by the most strict interpretation of the "director conflict of interest provisions" of Chapter 22 of the Texas Business Organizations Code and the Texas Condominium Act, as amended from time to time, may not vote on any proposal to provide officer compensation and shall recuse himself from participating in any such discussions.
- 4.9 Officers Authorized to Execute Amendments to Declaration. Any amendments to the Declaration, including the Nat, which are required by the Condominium Act or the

Declaration to be executed by the Association, may be executed by either the President or Vice-President of the Association.

ARTICLE V. MONETARY AND OTHER PENALTIES

- 5.1 Power of Board of Directors to Imnose Monetary Penalties. In accordance with the procedures set forth in this Article 5, the Board of Directors shall have the right to impose reasonable monetary penalties or fines against any Unit Owner who violates any provisions of the Condominium Documents relating to matters other than failure to timely pay Assessments. The Association may impose late charges, charge delinquent interest and undertake the remedies specified in the Declaration for failure to timely pay Assessments without regard to any of the mandatory hearing provisions of this Article 5. Any monetary penalty or fine imposed by the Board of Directors in accordance with this Article 5 shall be imposed only after the procedures set forth in this Article 5 have been substantially complied with.
- 5.2 Notice of Violation. If the Board of Directors becomes aware of a violation of the Condominium Documents and desires to impose a monetary penalty against the Unit Owner who violated the Condominium Documents, the Board of Directors shall serve the Unit Owner with written notice of the violation. The notice shall contain the following:
- (i) The nature of the alleged violation and the provision(s) of the Condominium Documents that are alleged to have been violated;
- (ii) The date of the alleged violation or the date the alleged violation was observed, as applicable;
- (iii) Information on how to request an opportunity for a hearing on the alleged violation to be held no later than the next regular Board meeting (to be returned by the affected Unit Owner within ten (10) days after the date of the written notice of violation, unless a longer time to respond is permitted by the Board for exigent circumstances);
 - (iv) The proposed monetary penalty to be imposed by the Board of Directors,

Upon the Board's receipt of a request for hearing regarding an alleged violation of the Condominium Documents, all fines, imposition of monetary penalties and commencement of legal actions, shall be stayed until the matter of the alleged violation is resolved. The Board shall, within a reasonable time after receipt of a request for hearing, deliver a notice of hearing to the affected Unit Owner. The notice of hearing shall specify the time and place of the hearing (to be held not earlier than fifteen (15) days' after delivery of the notice of hearing) and shall contain an invitation to the Unit Owner to produce statements, evidence and witnesses on his behalf and advising the Unit Owner that he may be represented at the hearing by an attorney.

5.3 Hearing. The hearing on any alleged violation of the Condominium Documents shall be held at the time and at the place designated in the notice served pursuant to Section 1.9 and Section 5.2 of these Bylaws. Proof of service of the notice as required by Section 5.2 of these Bylaws shall be placed in the minutes of the meeting. Such proof shall be deemed adequate if a copy of the notice, together with a statement of the date and manner of delivery, is entered by the officer, director or agent who served the notice. The notice requirement shall also be deemed

H-Bylaws - Ashury Condominium Association (726329_1),DOC

satisfied if the alleged violator appears at the meeting. The minutes of the meeting shall contain a written statement of the results of the hearing and the monetary or other penalty, if any, imposed by the Board of Directors. Any fine which is imposed by the Board following a hearing pursuant to this Section 5.3 shall be paid by the offending Unit Owner within a reasonable time frame established by the Board on a case by case basis pursuant to Board policies or Rules (but not less than ten (10) days) after a notice of the action of the Board is served upon the Unit Owner as provided in Section 1.9 of these Bylaws. After such payment period established by the Board in its notice of action, if such monetary penalty or fine is unpaid by the Owner, the Board, among other remedies, may: (i) seek to enforce its Assessment Lieu to the extent any penalties or fees payable under this Article 5 are secured thereby in the manner provided in the Declaration for enforcement of Assessment Liens or, in the alternative, and/or if not so secured, (ii) seek to obtain and Record a civil judgment against the Unit of the offending Unit Owner in the amount of such monetary penalty or fine. Any fines imposed pursuant to this Article 5 shall be the joint and several liability of all of the joint Owners of the Unit, including co-tenants and Persons bolding title in community property. To the extent applicable, all notices given by the Association under this Section 5.3 shall include the information required to be given under Section 82.102(d) of the Texas Condominium Act.

Suspension of Rights to Use Recreational Common Riements. If any Unit Owner is in arrears in the payment of any Assessment, late charges, monetary penalties or other fees or charges due under the terms of the Condominium Documents, including Collection Costs, for a period of fifteen (15) days, the Unit Owner's right to use, or to delegate the use of, the recreational Common Element amenities to Lessees or other lawful Residents of the Unit or their respective Invitees, shall be automatically suspended and shall remain suspended until all payments are brought current. In addition, a Unit Owner's, Resident's or right of any Person occupying a Unit, to use the recreational Common Elements shall be suspended for any continuing infraction of the Condominium Documents by the Unit Owner, his Lessees or other lawful Residents of a Unit, or their respective Invitees, that is not cured within thirty (30) days after notice thereof from the Association to the Unit Owner and shall remain suspended until any such infraction or violation of the Condominium Documents ceases as reasonably determined by the Board. The Board may also impose a suspension of a Unit Owner's, Lessee's, Resident's (or their respective Invitees') right to use the recreational Common Elements for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days by giving written notice of such suspension to any such Unit Owner who has committed, or whose Lesses, Residents, or their respective Invitees have committed, repeated or multiple single infractions (three or more instances) of any provisions of the Condominium Documents in any six month period (regardless of whether such infractions have been subsequently cured or ceased). In the case of a summary suspension of recreational Common Element use rights for non-monetary violations of the Condominium Documents pursuant to this Section 5A, the Board shall provide the date of the next scheduled Board meeting in the suspension notice. The affected Unit Owner or Resident may request a hearing before the Board before such suspension becomes effective if the Unit Owner or Resident serves a written request for a hearing on the Board within ten (10) days after the Board's service of the suspension notice on the Unit or Resident in the manner provided in Section 1.9 above. Upon the Board's receipt of a request of a hearing, the matter shall be heard at the next scheduled Board meeting. Any suspension of use rights imposed in accordance with this Section 5.4 shall also apply to any Resident or any other Person occupying the Unit Owner's Unit irrespective of whether the occupancy of a Unit is temporary (as e.g. in the case of a guest) or long term. The

H-Bylaws - Asbury Condominium Association(726329_1).DOC

Board's right to suspend recreational Common Element use pursuant to this Section 5.4 shall be in addition to the right of the Board to suspend a Unit Owner's voting rights in accordance with Section 2.11 of these Bylaws and the Declaration. To the extent applicable, all notices given by the Association under this Section 5.4 shall include the information required to be given under Section 82.102(d) of the Texas Condominium Act.

5.5 No Limitation on Other Rights and Remedies. Nothing contained in this Article 5 of these Bylaws shall be construed as limiting the rights and remedies of the Board or any other Owner to enforce the Condominium Documents provided therein and available at law or in equity, it being understood that this Article 5 relates to the imposition of certain fines and other penalties and is not intended as a recitation of the entire scope of the rights and remedies of the Board or any Member of the Association.

ARTICLE VL ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL AND ARCHITECTURAL COMMITTEE

- 6.1 <u>Duties Pursuant to Section 4.3 of Declaration</u>. The Board shall meet from time to time as necessary to perform its duties pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Declaration. The vote or written consent of a majority of the members of the Board, at a meeting or otherwise, shall constitute the act of the Board unless the unanimous decision of the Board is required by any other provision of the Declaration. The Board shall keep and maintain a written record of all actions taken by it at such meeting or otherwise. The Board may, at the expense of the Association, employ one or more consultants to assist the Board with its duties pursuant to said Section 4.3.
- 6.2 Architectural Rules. The Board may adopt, amend, and repeal, by unanimous vote or written consent, architectural rules and regulations as part of the Association Rules which set standards and procedures for Board review and the guidelines for architectural design, placement of Improvements, color schemes, finishes and materials, and similar features which are required or permitted to be used within the Condominium. Without limitation, if the Board elects to delegate its duties under Section 4.3 to an Architectural Committee, the Architectural Rules shall allow for an appeal of any decisions of the Architectural Committee to the Board. The vote or written consent of a majority of the members of the Board, at a meeting or otherwise, shall constitute the act of the Board unless the unanimous decision of the Board is required by any other provision of the Declaration.
- 6.3 <u>Waiver.</u> The approval by the Board of the plans, drawings, or specifications for any work done or proposed, or for any other matter requiring the approval of the Board under the Declaration, shall not be deemed to constitute a waiver of any right to withhold approval of any similar plan, drawing, specification, or matter subsequently submitted for approval.
- 6.4 <u>Liability</u>. So long as a member of the Board has acted in good faith on the basis of information actually possessed, neither the Board nor such member thereof, shall be liable to the Association, any Owner, or to any other party, for any damage, loss, or prejudice suffered or claimed on account of: (i) the approval or disapproval or any plans, drawings, or specifications, whether or not defective; (ii) the construction or performance of any work, whether or not pursuant to approved plans, drawings, and specifications; (iii) the development of any portion of

H-Bylsws - Asbury Condominium Association (726329_1), DOC

the Condominium; or (iv) the execution and filing of any estoppel certificate, whether or not the facts in the estoppel certificate are correct.

- 6.5 Approval Requirements. In the event the Board fails to approve or disapprove any application for approval within forty-five (45) days after its receipt of the application, together with complete and legible copies of the supporting plans and specifications, the application shall be deemed disapproved. In the case of a denial of an application, the Board shall make a good faith effort to detail in writing any objectionable materials in an Owner's application for a Modification pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Declaration; provided, further, however, that at no time may any Owner, Resident, or their agents or contractors, proceed with a Modification without the express prior written approval of the Board, and then only in exact conformity with the Modification so approved.
- 6.6 <u>Architectural Committee</u>. Pursuant to Section 4.3(K) of the Declaration, the Board may appoint an Architectural Committee to perform the duties of the Board under Section 4.3 and any other provisions of the Declaration so delegated and, if so appointed, all references to the "Board" under this Article 6 shall also mean and refer to the Architectural Committee as the context so requires to the extent of any duties delegated by the Board to the Architectural Committee.
- (A) <u>Number/Composition</u>. The Architectural Committee shall consist of three (3) persons. None shall be required to be an architect or to meet any other particular qualifications. Such persons need not be, but may be, a member of the Board or an officer of the Association. The Board may increase the number of persons on the Architectural Committee, but the number of persons must always be an odd number.
- (B) Terms of Office. The term of office for members of the Architectural Committee shall be for a period of one (1) year, or until the appointment of a successor. Any new member appointed to replace a member who has resigned or been removed shall serve such member's unexpired term. Any members who have resigned, been removed, or whose terms have expired may be reappointed.
- (C) Appointment and Removal. Except as may be otherwise provided in the Declaration, the right to appoint and remove all members of the Architectural Committee at any time, shall be and is hereby vested solely in the Board; provided, however, that no member may be removed from the Architectural Committee by the Board except by the vote or written consent of more than fifty percent (50%) of the entire Board.
- (D) <u>Resignations</u>. Any member of the Architectural Committee may resign at any time upon written notice to the Board.
- (E) <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies on the Architectural Committee however caused, shall be filled by the Board. A vacancy or vacancies on the Architectural Committee shall be deemed to exist in case of the death, resignation, or removal of any member thereof.
- (F) <u>Duties</u>. Subject to the further provisions of Section 4.3 of the Declaration, it shall be the duty of the Architectural Committee to consider and act upon any and all proposals or plans submitted to it pursuant to the terms of the Declaration, to adopt Architectural Committee

H-Byławs - Asbury Condominium Association(726529_1),DOC

Rules, to perform other duties delegated to it by the Board, and to carry out all other duties imposed upon it by the Declaration.

(G) Meetings and Compensation. The Architectural Committee shall meet from time to time as necessary to perform its duties. The vote or written consent of a majority of the members of the Architectural Committee, at a meeting or otherwise, shall constitute the act of the Architectural Committee unless the unanimous decision of the Architectural Committee is required by any other provision of the Declaration. The Architectural Committee shall keep and maintain a written record of all actions taken by it at such meeting or otherwise. Members of the Architectural Committee shall not be entitled to compensation for their services. However, the Architectural Committee may, at the expense of the Association, employ one or more consultants to assist the Architectural Committee.

ARTICLE VII. OTHER COMMITTEES

7.1 Board Committees. The Board may create one or more committees (other than the Architectural Committee described in Section 4.3 of the Declaration and Article 6 above) and appoint members of the Board to serve on them. Each committee shall have one or more members and each member of a committee shall serve at the pleasure of the entire Board. The creation of a committee and appointment of members of the Board to the committee must be approved by the greater of: (a) a majority of all the directors in office when the action is taken; or (b) the number of directors required by Section 3.9 above to take action. The provisions of these Bylaws governing meetings, action without meetings and notice, waiver of notice, quorum and voting requirements of the Board shall also apply to committees of the Board and their members.

Each committee of the Board may exercise the authority of the Board to the extent specified by the Board, except that a committee shall not take any of the following actions: (a) authorize distributions; (b) fill vacancies on the Board or any of its committees; (c) adopt, amend or repeal these Bylaws; and (d) fix the compensation of directors for serving on the Board or any committee or fix the compensation of any officer serving the Board. The Board may designate one or more directors as alternate members of any committee who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee.

7.2 <u>Advisory Committees</u>. The Board may appoint committees consisting of members and/or non-members of the Board to advise the Board and to perform such tasks as the Board deems necessary or desirable. Such advisory committee shall not have the power to exercise any authority of the Board. Except for any Architectural Committee as may be formed pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Declaration and Article 6 of these Bylaws, any Board committee that includes persons in its membership that are not also members of the Board shall automatically be deemed advisory in nature.

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, am the duly elected and acting Secretary of ASBURY PARK CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, a Texas non-profit corporation, and I do hereby certify:

That the foregoing Bylaws of the Asbury Park Condominium Association was properly adopted as of the 9th day of June, 2008.

Jun Weinguide

(ACKNOWLEDGMENT APPEARS ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE).

Please See Attached Acknowledgement From Notary Public

After recording, please return to:

Rosemary B. Jackson, P.C. / / 2016 Main, Box 1702 Houston, Texas 77002

be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to within instrument and acknowledged to me he/she/they executed the same in bis/her/their authoric capacity(jiss), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the is of the State of California that the foregoing paragrap true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature OPTIONAL Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. Description of Attached Document Title or Type of Document: Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — Limited General Attorney in Fact Trustee Guardian or Conservator Other: Guardian or Conservator	State of California San Mateo County of	
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence be the person(s) whose name(s) is signer(s) whose name(s) is signer evidence be the person(s) whose name(s) is signer subscribed to within instrument and acknowledged to me ho/she/thay executed the same in bis/her/their authoric capacity(igs), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. Commission # 1863711	On Ma 4) 4 .) . / 3 hefore me Sos	ssi Salih, Notary Public
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to within instrument and acknowledged to me in basis/he/thpy executed the same in biss/he/thpise rauthori capacity(iis), and that by his/her/their authori capacity(iis), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on instrument the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. Commission # 1863711	•	,
be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to within instrument and acknowledged to me the/she/thay executed the same in bis/her/thair authoric capacity(igs), and that by his/her/thair signature(s) on instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the is of the State of California that the foregoing paragrap true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature OPTIONAL Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. Description of Attached Document Title or Type of Document: Certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the is of the State of California that the foregoing paragrap true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature OPTIONAL Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. Description of Attached Document Title or Type of Document: Certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the is of the State of California that the foregoing paragrap true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature Signature Signature I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the is of the State of California that the foregoing paragrap true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature Sig	personally appeared Lynn +. W	C roga Fa () Name(s) of Signer(s)
Though the information below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. Description of Attached Document Title or Type of Document:	SOSSI SALIH Commission # 1863711 Notary Public - California San Mateo County My Comm. Expires Sep 3, 2013	I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the law of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal.
And could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document. Description of Attached Document Cech Fice Fice Fice Fice Fice Fice Fice Fice	•	
Description of Attached Document Title or Type of Document:	Though the information below is not required by law, it n and could prevent fraudulent removal and rea	nay prove valuable to persons relying on the document attachment of this form to another document.
Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: Signer's Name: Individual Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — Limited General Attorney in Fact Trustee Guardian or Conservator Other:		
Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: Signer's Name: Signer's Name: Individual Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — Itimited	Title or Type of Document: Pertifical	رد را
Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — Timited General Attorney in Fact Trustee Guardian or Conservator Other: Other: Other: Other: Other: Other: Other: Other:		
Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s) Signer's Name: Individual Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General Attorney in Fact Trustee Guardian or Conservator Guardian or Conservator Other:	Document Bate, 3-24-7	Number of Fages.
Signer's Name: Signer's Name: Individual Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s):	Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:	N' IN
Signer's Name: Signer's Name: Individual Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s):	0	
☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other: ☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other:	Capacity(les) Claimed by Signer(s)	
Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other		Cima alla Massa
☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other: ☐ Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other: ☐ Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other: ☐ Conservator	Signer's Name:	Signer's Name:
Attorney in Fact OF SIGNER Trustee Guardian or Conservator Other: Other: OF SIGNER Top of thumb here OF SIGNER Top of thumb here Other: Other:	Signer's Name: Individual	☐ Individual
☐ Trustee ☐ Top of thumb here ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other: ☐ Other: ☐ Trustee ☐ Top of thumb here ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Oth	Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s):	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s):
☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ O	Signer's Name: ☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s); ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General
Other:	Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General Attorney in Fact General Figure Gen	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s); ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Top of thumb here
	Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General Attorney in Fact OF SIGNER Top of thumb here	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s); ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Trustee ☐ Individual ☐ General ☐ FIGHT THUMBPRINT OF SIGNER Top of thumb here
	Signer's Name: ☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator
Signer Is Representing: Signer Is Representing:	Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: Other: Other:	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Trustee ☐ Guardian or Conservator ☐ Other: ☐ Other:

RECORDER'S MEMORANDUM:
At the time of recordation, this instrument was found to be inadequate for the best photographic reproduction because of illegibility, carbon or photo copy, discolored paper, etc. All blockouts, additions and changes were present at the time the instrument was filed and recorded.

をして アースの

ANY PROVISION HEREIN WHICH RESTRICTS THE SALE RENTAL, OR USE OF THE DESCRIBED REAL PROPERTY BECAUSE OF COLOR OR RACE IS INVALID AND UNENFORCEASLE UNDER FEDERAL LAW. THE STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF HARRIS. I hereby only had he instrument has FLED in File Number Sequence on the date and all the time stamped hereon by me, and was duly RECORDED, in the Official Public Records of Real Property of Hamis County, Texas

MAY 30 2013



COUNTY CLERK HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS

20130263045 05/30/2013 RP1 \$28.00

averd

FIRST AMENDMENT TO BY-LAWS

OF

ASBURY PARK CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION A TEXAS NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of Asbury Park Condominium Association were executed on June 9, 2008;

WHEREAS, Section 1.7 of the Bylaws of Asbury Park Condominium Association (hereinafter "Bylaws") provides that said document can be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Members, by a vote of the Members holding more than fifty percent (50%) of the total allocated votes of the Membership entitled to be cast by the Members present in person, by proxy, or by absentee ballot; and

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Membership, more than fifty percent (50%) of the Members present in person or by proxy voted to amend the following provision of the Bylaws;

NOW THEREFORE, Article II, Section 2.4 is hereby AMENDED to read as follows:

2.4 Quorum and Adjournment. Except as otherwise provided in the Articles, the Declaration or these Bylaws, including, without limitation, Section 7.4 of the Declaration, the presence in person, by proxy or by absentee ballot (as permitted by applicable law) of Members entitled to cast ten percent (10%) of the total authorized votes in the Association shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Members. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting, the Members entitled to vote thereat shall have e the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present. Except as provided in Section 7.4 of the Declaration, any adjournment for lack of a quorum shall be to a date not more than fifty (50) days from the original meeting date. Members who choose to and provide the means for attending any meeting of the Membership via telephonic or electronic means shall be counted as if present in person. Verbal voting will not be allowed; however, the Board of Directors has the discretion to allow voting by electronic means.

 FURTHER, Article II, Section 2.6(C) is hereby ADDED as follows:

- 2.6 Proxies/Absentee Ballots.
 - (C) If the Board of Directors of the Association chooses to allow electronic voting for members and establishes a means for Members to do so, such voting shall be permissible.

Nothing herein is intended to alter, modify or amend the Bylaws except as specifically provided hereinabove.

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, am the duly elected and acting Secretary of ASBURY PARK CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, a non-profit corporation, and I do hereby certify:

That the within and foregoing First Amendment to Bylaws of Asbury Park Condominium Association was properly adopted as of the <u>3rd</u> day of <u>February</u>, <u>2010</u>, that same, in addition to the original Bylaws, do now constitute the Bylaws of said corporation IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this First Amendment to Bylaws to be effective as of the 3rd day of February , 2010.

Please See Attached Acknowledgement From Notary Public

(Signature)

Lynn Weingarden

(Print Name)

Secretary, Asbury Park Condominium Association

ym weigade

log l

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACI	KNOWLEDGMENT
State of California County ofSan Mateo	
On May 24,25/3 before me,	Here Insert Name and Title of the Officer Weingarden Name(s) of Signer(s)
<u>.</u>	who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s) or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct. WITNESS my hand and official seal. Signature Signature of Notary Public
and could prevent fraudulent removal and i	it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document reattachment of this form to another document.
Description of Attached Document	and to R. Leuis
Title or Type of Document: Fix A Mondo Document Date: 5-24-13	
Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:	1/1A
Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)	
Signer's Name: Individual Corporate Officer — Title(s): Partner — Timited General Attorney in Fact Trustee Guardian or Conservator Other: Signer Is Representing:	☐ Individual ☐ Corporate Officer — Title(s): ☐ Partner — ☐ Limited ☐ General ☐ Attorney in Fact ☐ Attorney in Fact

© 2007 National Notary Association • 9350 De Solo Ave., P.O. Box 2402 • Chatsworth, CA 91313-2402 • www.NationalNotary.org | Item #5907 | Reorder: Call Toll-Free 1-800-876-6827

After recording, please return to:

Rosemary B. Jackson, P.C.

2016 Main, Box 1702

Houston, Texas 77002



RECORDER'S MEMORANDUM:
At the time of recordation, this instrument was found to be inadequate for the best photographic reproduction because of illegibility, carbon or photo copy, discolored paper, etc. All blockouts, photo copy, discolored paper, etc. All blockouts, additions and changes were present at the time additions and changes were present at the time the instrument was filed and recorded.

N

ANY PROVISION HEREIN WHICH RESTRICTS THE SALE RENTAL, OR USE OF THE DESCRIBED REAL PROPERTY BECAUSE OF COLORIGR RACE IS INVALID AND UNENFORCEASLE UNDER FEDERAL LAW. THE STATE OF TEXAS COUNTY OF HARRIS.

I hereby cardly but the instrument was FILED in File Number Sequence on the date and at the time stamped herein by me; and was duly RECORDED, in the Official Public Records of Read Property of Harris County, Texas

MAY 3 0 2013



Stan Stanart
COUNTY CLERK
HARRIS COUNTY, TEXAS